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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of WTC Trades & Projects
Private Limited is scheduled at 11.30 a.m. on Monday, 15™ July, 2024 at the Board Room, 30™
Floor, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1, Dr.Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram-
Rajajinagar, Bangalore - 560 05510 transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet and Audited Profit & Loss Account
for the financial year ended 315" March, 2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors and
the Auditors thereon.

"RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of the Company including the Balance
Sheet as at 315" March, 2024, the statement of profit and loss for the year ended on that
date, notes to financial statements, reports of the Board and Auditors' thereon be and are
hereby received, considered and adopted.”

2. To Declare of final Dividend for the financial year 2023-24:

"RESOLVED THAT a final dividend of X22.50/- per equity share (Rupees Twenty Two and
fifty paisa only) of X10/- each fully paid up be and is hereby declared and paid out of the
profits for the financial year 2023-2024."

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vineet Verma (DIN: 06362115), who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant fo the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Vineet Verma
(DIN: 06362115), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by
rotation."

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to Section 149, 152 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force), Mr. Hrishikesh Ramachandran Nair (DIN: 06711927), who was appointed as an
Additional Director of the Company by the Board of Directors with effect from 16™ June,
2024 and who holds office until the date of this Annual General Meeting in terms of Section
161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in
writing under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a member proposing her



candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the
Company liable to retire by rotation."

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Directors of the Company be and are hereby severally
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary for effecting the
aforesaid resolution in his absolute discretion and to sign, execute all necessary documents,
applications, refurns as may be required.”

Place: Bangalore By Order of the Board

Date: 16™ June, 2024 For WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited
Sd/-

Registered Office: Vineet Verma

4™ Floor, World Trade Center, Director

Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1, DIN: 06362115

Dr. Rajkumar Road,
Malleswaram-Rajajinagar,
Bangalore - 560055

NOTES:

a) A MEMBER ENTITLEDTO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT APROXY
TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF ANDTHE PROXY NEED
NOT BE A MEMBER.

b) Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office of the Company
not less than forty-eight hours before this Annual General Meeting.

¢) The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 setting out
material facts in respect of the business under Item No. 3 to be transacted at the Annual
General Meeting (AGM) is annexed hereto.



Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013:

ITEM NO.3:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of
Association of the Company, the Board of Directors have appointed Mr. Hrishikesh Ramachandran
Nair (DIN: 06711927) as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 16™ June, 2024.
In terms of the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act, Mr. Hrishikesh Ramachandran Nair
(DIN: 06711927) would hold office up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received notice in writing under the provisions of Section 160 of the Companies
Act, 2013, from a member under Section 160 of the Act proposing the candidature of
Mr. Hrishikesh Ramachandran Nair (DIN: 06711927) for the office of Director of the Company.

Mr. Hrishikesh Ramachandran Nair (DIN: 06711927) is not disqualified from being appointed as a
Director in tferms of Section 164 of the Act and has given his consent to act as a Director.

The Board of Directors recommend the resolution No. 3 approval by the Shareholders as an
Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are concerned or interested
either financially or otherwise in the Resolution.

Place: Bangalore By Order of the Board

Date: 16™ June, 2024 For WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited
Sd/-

Registered Office: Vineet Verma

4™ Floor, World Trade Center, Director

Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1, DIN: 06362115

Dr. Rajkumar Road,
Malleswaram-Rajajinagar,
Bangalore - 560055



WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited
CIN: U74900KA2010PTC056191
Regd. Off. : 4™ Floor, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus,
26/1, Dr.Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram-Rajajinagar, Bangalore 560 055.

Fifteenth Annual General Meeting on Monday, 15™ July, 2024 at 11.30 a.m.

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall)

CLID/ Folio No.
DPID. : No. of Shares held:

I certify that I am a Registered Shareholder/Proxy for the Registered Shareholder of the
Company. I hereby record my presence at the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company
being held at 11.30 a.m. on Monday, 15™ July, 2024 at the Board Room, 30™ Floor, World Trade
Center, Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1, Dr. Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram-Rajajinagar, Bangalore -
560 055

Name of the Member/Proxy Signature of Member / Proxy
(in Block Letters)

Notes: A member/proxy wishing to attend the meeting must fill up this Attendance Slip and hand

it over at the entrance. If you intend to appoint a proxy, please complete the proxy form below
and deposit it at the Company's Registered Office atleast 48 hours before the meeting.



FORM NO. M6T-11
PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited
CIN: U74900KA2010PTC056191
4™ Floor, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus,
26/1, Dr.Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram-Rajajinagar, Bangalore 560 055.

Name of the member(s): e-mail Id:
Registered address: Folio No/ *Client Id:
*DP Id:
I/We, being the member(s) of ... Shares of WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited, hereby appoint:
1) e OF e having e-mail ideec0r failing him
2) s OF e having e-mail idec0r failing him
3) s OF v having e-mail idcc0r failing him

and whose signature(s) are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf
at the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 11.30 a.m. on Monday, 15t July, 2024 at the Board
Room, 30™ Floor, World Trade Center, Brigade Gateway Campus, 26/1, Dr. Rajkumar Road, Malleswaram-Rajajinagar,
Bangalore- 560 055 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as follows:

RESOLUTION RESOLUTIONS VOTE
NUMBER (PLEASE MARK (V) AND
NO. OF SHARES)
FOR | AGAINST

Ordinary Business

1 Adoption of Annual Accounts and Reports thereon for the

financial year ended 31st March, 2024.
2 Declare final Dividend for the financial year 2023-24.
3 Re-appointment of Mr. Vineet Verma (DIN: 06362115) as a

director liable to retire by rotation.

Special Business
4 Appointment  of  Mr. Hrishikesh  Ramachandran  Nair
(DIN: 06711927) as Director of the Company

Signed this...... day of........ 2024 Signature of member

Signature of first proxy holder Sighature of second proxy holder  Signature of third proxy holder

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of
the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
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BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Members

We have pleasure in presenting the Fifteenth Annual Report on business and operations of the
Company together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended
315" March, 2024.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

Income 14,672.14 14,444 50

Expenditure 11,604.24 9,856.35

Profit before tax 3,067.90 4,649 .55
Provision for: Current Tax 838.87 416.19
Deferred Tax (62.88) (20.18)

Net Profit after Tax 2,291 91 4,253.54
Other Comprehensive Income (11.00) (7.69)

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 2,280.91 4,245 85

FINANCIAL& OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW:

Your Company generated revenue of Rs. 14,672.14 lakhs for the financial year ended on
31" March, 2024 as compared to Rs. 14,444.50 lakhs during the previous year, an increase by
1.58%. The increase is due to hike in CAM rate & increase in Occupancy across major projects &
vacant area billing (BTG, OMG, WTC Bangalore & WTC Chennai) and new projects - BST & Senate
2. Further increase due to income from Global Business Forum & Interest on FD. The Company
posted a net profit of Rs.2,291.91 lakhs for the year ended 315" March, 2024 as compared to
4,253.54 lakhs during the previous year, a decrease by 46.12%. The Company has earned Total
Comprehensive income/expenditure of Rs.2,280.91 Lakhs as compared to Rs.4,245.85 lakhs during
the previous year.

The Company has operations in South Indian cities namely Bangalore, Kochi & Chennai.

HOLDING/ SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES:

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Brigade Enterprises Limited and M/s. Tandem Allied
Services Private Limited is a subsidiary of the Company and there are no associate companies.

SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION:

Your Board has approved a Scheme of Amalgamation in which the Tandem Allied Services Private
Limited, subsidiary of the Company will amalgamate with the Company. The Company is Wholly
Owned Subsidiary of Brigade Enterprises Limited and Tandem Allied Services Private Limited is
the subsidiary of the Company. The rationale for the Amalgamation is similarity of business model,
synergy in operations and scale & size of the business.



During the year the Scheme of Amalgamation of Tandem Allied Services Private Limited with the
Company was efiled with the Bengaluru Bench of the Honourable National Company Law Tribunal
(NCLT) on 315" August, 2023 for dispensing meetings of Secured and unsecured creditors
meetings. The NCLT has reviewed and approved the dispensing creditors meetings.

The approval for the scheme of the amalgamation is in final stages and the process is expected
to be completed in the next financial year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

The Company has not transferred any amount to reserves during the financial year 2023-24.

DIVIDEND:

The Board of Directors of the Company have recommended a final dividend of Rs. 22.50/- per
equity share (225%) of Rs. 10/- each which is subject to approval of the Members in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

FIXED DEPOSITS:

The Company has not accepted any deposits in terms of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014, during the year and accordingly, no
amount is outstanding as on the balance sheet date.

SHARE CAPITAL:
There has been no change in the Share Capital of the Company during the year.
DEBENTURES:

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any Debentures. As on date, the
Company does not have any outstanding Debentures.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of 1 Executive Director and 2 non-executive
Directors. The composition of the Board of Directors is in due compliance of the Companies Act,
2013 & the Rules made there under.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and the provisions of Section
152(6)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Vineet Verma (DIN: 06362115) Director of the
Company will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer
himself for re-appointment.

During the year, Mr. Pradyumna Krishna Kumar (DIN: 07870840) has been resigned from the
directorship of the Company with effect from 10™ July, 2023. The Board placed on record its
appreciation for the role played by him in the development of the Company during his tenure as
director.


http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified under Section 164(2) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

BOARD MEETINGS:

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company met 4 times and the details
of the same is as tabled below:

Dates on which Board Meetings Total Strength of the Board | No of Directors
were held Present

3rd May, 2023 4 (Four) 4 (Four)

18™ July, 2023 3 (Three) 3 (Three)

18™ October, 2023 3 (Three) 3 (Three)

22" January, 2024 3 (Three) 3 (Three)

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

The Board of Directors of the Company have attended the Board Meeting & Annual General
Meeting the details of which are as follows:

Name of the Director | Board meetings attended in | Attendance in the 14™ Annual
the financial year | General Meeting held on 7™ July,
2023-2024 2023

Mr. P. Balaram Menon 4 (Four) Yes

Ms. Nirupa Shankar 4 (Four) Yes

Mr. Vineet Verma 4 (Four) Yes

Mr. Pradyumna Krishna | 1 (One) Yes

Kumar™

*Resigned from the directorship of the Company w.e.f. 10" July, 2023.
AUDIT COMMITTEE:

During the year 2023-24, the Audit Committee met 4 (Four) times. The dates on which the said
meetings were held are as follows:

3rd May, 2023

18™ July, 2023
18™ October, 2023
22" January, 2024

The composition of the Audit Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members
are given below:

SI | Name of the Directors | Designation | No. of Committee Meetings during the
No. year 2023-24

Held Attended




1 Mr. Balaram Menon Chairperson 4 (Four) 4 (Four)
2 Mr. Vineet Verma Member 4 (Four) 4 (Four)
3 Ms. Nirupa Shankar Member 4 (Four) 4 (Four)

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

A Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee has been constituted in accordance with the
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year, the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee met on 7™ March, 2024.
The composition of the CSR Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members are
given below:

SI | Name of the Directors | Designation | No. of Committee Meetings during the
No. year 2023-24
Held Attended
1 Mr. Vineet Verma Chairman 1 (one) 1 (one)
2 Ms. Nirupa Shankar Member 1 (one) 1 (one)
3 Mr. Balaram Menon Member 1 (one) 1 (one)

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

During the year, the Nomination & Remuneration (NRC) Committee met on 7™ March, 2024. The
composition of the NRC Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members are given

below:
SI | Name of the Directors | Designation | No. of Committee Meetings during the
No. year 2023-24
Held Attended
Ms. Nirupa Shankar Chairperson | 1 (one) 1 (one)
3 Mr. Balaram Menon Member 1 (one) 1 (one)
4 Mr. Vineet Verma Member 1 (one) 1 (one)

POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:

The Directors of the Company are appointed by the members at the annual general meeting in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

The Company has adopted the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the appointment
and fenure of Directors.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Board of Directors hereby confirm that:



a) in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 315" March, 2024,
the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
Jjudgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of
the Company for that period;

c) the Directors had faken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d) the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) thereare proper systems o ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were
in place and were adequate and operating effectively.

KEY MANAGERTIAL PERSONNEL:

The provisions relating to Key Managerial Personnel in accordance with the provisions of Section
203 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable for the financial year 2023-24.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

There are no employees in the Company falling within the thresholds stipulated under the
provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

The members of the Company at the Eleventh Annual General Meeting held on 17" September,
2020 approved the re-appointment of M/s. B.K. Ramadhyani & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants
(Registration No. 002878S) Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years till the
conclusion of Sixteenth Annual General Meeting in terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Statutory Auditors’ Report for the financial
statements for the year ended 315" March, 2024 which require any explanation from the Board
of Directors.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.



PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

The related party transactions entered during the financial year 2023-24 are detailed in notes
to accounts of the financial Statements. The related party transactions have been carried out at
arm'’s length basis and in the normal course of Business.

ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a copy of the Annual Return of the
Company for the period 315" March, 2024 is uploaded on the holding company’s website under the
following link: www.brigadegroup.com.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM:

The Company has adequate internal financial control systems in place with reference to the
financial statements.

During the year under review, these controls were evaluated and no significant weakness was
identified either in the design or operation of the controls.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board of Directors have been entrusted with the responsibility for establishing policies to
monitor and evaluate risk management systems of the Company.

The business risks identified are reviewed and a detailed action plan to mitigate identified risks
is drawn up and its implementation monitored. The key risks and mitigation actions will also be
placed before the Board of Directors of the Company on a periodic basis.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

A Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee has been constituted in accordance with the
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The disclosures as required under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(1) of
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is appended as Annexure-1 to
this Report.

During the year the Company has spent the entire eligible CSR amount of Rs.60 Lakhs.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

The Company has limited scope for energy conservation. Emphasis is being laid on employing
techniques which result in conservation of energy. At workplace, emphasis is more on installation
of energy efficient lights and using natural light o a maximum extent,


http://www.brigadegroup.com/

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: NIL
C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
During the year under review, the Company has neither earned nor used any foreign exchange.

HUMAN RESOURCES:

Many initiatives have been taken to support business through organizational efficiency, process
change support and various employee engagement programs, your Company has currently 128
employees. A significant effort has also been undertaken to develop leadership as well as
technical/ functional capabilities in order to meet future talent requirements.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

As a part of the policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment in the organisation, the Holding
Company i.e. Brigade Enterprises Limited has framed a policy for the Group and constituted a
"Complaints Redressal Committee” for prevention and redressal of complaints on sexuadl
harassment of women at work place in accordance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition, and Redressal) Act, 2013 and relevant rules thereunder.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed of f during the
year:

* No. of complaints received: Nil
* No. of complaints disposed off: Nil

COMPLTIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:
Your company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards to the company.
WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM:

As a part of Whistle Blower Policy, the Holding Company i.e. Brigade Enterprises Limited has
framed a policy for the Brigade Group as part of vigil mechanism for observing the conduct of
Directors and employees and report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud
or violation of the Company's Code of conduct to the Ethics Committee members or the Chairman
of the Audit Committee of the Holding Company.

This mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization who avail the
mechanism.

OTHER DISCLOSURES:

a) Pursuant to Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Company is not required to maintain
any cost records.



b)

f)

9)

h)

No frauds were reported by the Auditors as specified under Section 143 of the Companies
Act 2013 for the period ended 31" March, 2024.

There are no Corporate Insolvency proceedings initiated against the company under
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

There were no significant or material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company's operations in future.

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year till the date of this
report.

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

There are no differential voting rights shares issued by the Company.

There were no sweat equity shares issued by the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation and sincere thanks to all the
stakeholders for the continued support and patronage. We look forward to your support and co-
operation as the Company is entering the next phase of growth.

By Order of the Board
For WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited
Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Bangalore Vineet Verma Nirupa Shankar
Date: 23" April, 2024 Managing Director Director

DIN: 06362115 DIN: 02750342



Annexure 1
CSR Initiatives undertaken by the Company during the financial year 2023-24

Brief outline of Company’'s CSR Policy of the Company

The Company has in place Corporate Social Responsibility Policy in accordance with
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Rules,
2014 together with Schedule VIT of the Companies Act, 2013.

The commitment of the Company is to set apart resources to support CSR initiatives
aimed at enhancing socio-economic development. Typically, it constitutes an effort to
improve living conditions of the local area in which the Company operates and fo benefit
society at large. The idea is to expend resources to create a positive impact in the
community and on society, without seeking any commensurate monetary benefit.

The Company is fully committed to proactively support inclusive and environmentally
sustainable growth in India. It genuinely believes that the benefits of development
should reach a larger number of people, especially the weaker sections of society, to
whom greater access to opportunities is the surest way to enable all-round socio-
economic progress. Likewise, it is committed to environmentally sustainable development
in all areas, given the challenges of climate change that call for measures for mitigation
and adaptation in a number of areas to preserve the environment for future generations.

FOCUS AREAS OF ENGAGEMENT:
The main focus areas of the Company's initiatives pertain to:

a) Health,

b) Skill Development/ Education,

¢) Promotion of music and other culture, and
d) Environment

Company may also engage and spend in areas mentioned in Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time fo time, subject to requisite approval, if
any.

. The composition of the CSR Committee:

The Composition of the CSR Committee is as follows:



SI No. Number of Number of
meetings of CSR
Committee held

during the year

Name of Director | Designation / Nature
of Directorship

Committee

meetings of CSR

attended during

the year

1 Mr. Vineet Verma | Chairperson/ Non- 1 1
Independent Director

2 | Ms. Nirupa Shankar| Member/ Non- 1 1
Independent Director

3 | Mr. Balaram Menon | Member/ Non- 1 1

Independent Director

. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company - NA.

. Executive summary along with web-link of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried
out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
responsibilityPolicy) Rules, 2014, if applicable.

Impact assessment is not applicable.

. (a)Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs.2,994.26 lakhs

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs.59.89
Lakhs

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects orprogrammes or activities of the previous
financial years: Nil

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs. 59.89 Lakhs

. (@) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing
Project: Rs.60 Lakhs

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

(d) Total amount spent for the financial year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: 60 Lakhs

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Amount Spent | Total Amount transferred | Amount transferred to any fund specified
for the Financial | To Unspent CSR Account | nderschedule VII as per second proviso to
as per section 135(6) .
Year. section 135(5)
(in Rs.)
Amount | Date of Name of Amount Date of
transfer the Fund transfer
Rs. 60 Lakhs NIL NIL




(f) Excess amount for set off, if any:

Sl.  |Particulars Amount (in
No. Rs.lakhs)
0) Two percent of average net profit of the company Rs. 59.89 Lakhs
as per section 135(5)
(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 60.00 Lakhs
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Rs. 0.11 Lakhs
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or
programmes or activities of the previous financial
years, if any
W) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial Rs. 0.11 Lakhs
years [(iii)-(iv)]

7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl. | Preceding Amount Balance Amount transferred to a fund as | Amount Deficien
No. | Financial transferred Amount in specified under Schedule VII as per | remaining fobe | cy, if
Year to Unspent Unspent CSR second proviso to section 135(5), if | spent in any

CSR Account | account under any. succeeding

under section | section 135 (6) Name of | Amount | Date of financial years.

135 (6)(in (in Rs.) the Fund (in Rs) | transfer (in Rs.)

Rs.)

NIL

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: NO

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate
Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

sl.
No.

Short
particulars  of
the property or
asset(s)
[including
complete
address and
location of the

property]

of

Pincode
the
property or
asset(s)

Date
creation

of

Amount of
CSR
amount
spent

Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary of
the registered owner

CSR

Registration
Number, if
applicable

Name

Registered
address




| NA. |

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per subsection (5) of section 135: Not Applicable

For WTC Trades & Projects Pvt Limited

Sd/-
Director and Chairperson of CSR Committee

Place: Bangalore
Date: 237 April, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited

Report on Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the standalone Ind AS financial statements of WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited (“the
Company”) which comprise of balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the statement of profit & loss, statement of
changes in equity and the cashflow statement for the year then ended, notes to Ind AS financial statements
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, profits, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis of Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters:

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Adoption of Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contract with Customers (as described in note 2.2 h of the Ind AS
financial statements)

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 Revenue - As part of our audit procedures, our procedures
from Contracts with Customers, mandatory for include the following:

reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, - We have read the accounting policy for revenue
2018.




| Application of Ind AS 115, including selection of
transition method involves significant judgment in
determining when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying  the
transferred to the customer and the transition

performance obligation s

method to be applied.

_fecognition and assessed compliance of the policy in
terms of principles enunciated under Ind AS 115.

- We obtained and understood the revenue recognition
process including determination of point of transfer of
control and completion of performance obligation.

- We performed test of details, on a sample basis, and
examined the underlying customer contracts.

As the revenue recognition, due to the significance
of the balance to the financial statements as a
whole, we regard this as a key audit matter.

- We examined the disclosures made by management in
compliance with the requirements of Ind AS 115.

Adoption of Ind AS 116 - Leases (as described in note 35 of the Ind AS financial statements)

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 Leases,
mandatory for reporting periods beginning on or
after April 1, 2019.

- As part of our audit procedures, our procedures
included the
- We have read the accounting policy for recognition and
assessed compliance of the policy in terms of principles
enunciated under Ind AS 116.

following:

Application of Ind AS 116, including selection of
the modified
retrospective approach and the present value
remaining
discounting using the incremental borrowing rate at
the date of initial application, recording the lease
liability at the present value of the remaining lease

transition method involving

calculation of the lease payments,

payments discounted at the incremental borrowing
rate and the right-of-use asset at its carrying
amount as if the standard had been applied since
the commencement date of the lease, but
the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

discounted at

- We obtained and understood the modified
retrospective approach and the recognition of Right-of-
Use Asset and Lease Liability as per the guidelines

explained in the standard.

- We performed test of details and calculations and
found in order.

Due to the significance of the balance of the Right-
of-Use Assets and Lease Liability to the financial
statements as a whole, we regard this as a key audit
matter.

- We examined the disclosures made by management in
compliance with the requirements of Ind AS 116.




Other Information [or another title if appropriate, such as “Information Other than the Financial Statements

and Auditor’s Report Thereon”]

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the board report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements:

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act, with respect
to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could




reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism through the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the Annexure — A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:




We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on that date from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure - B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
requirement of Section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not paid
any remuneration to its directors.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i)  The Company has disclosed its pending litigations which would impact its financial position in note
34 of the Ind AS financial statements.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, and also not entered into any derivative contracts, accordingly no provision
is required to be made in respect of material foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) a) Based on the information and explanation provided and as represented to us by the
management to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries :




b) Based on the information and explanation provided and as represented to us by the
management to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the
company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

v) As stated in note 36 to the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Company has
proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in accordance with section 123 of the
Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit
we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of
audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024.

For B. K. RAMADHYANI & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0028785/5200021

\/ (b iaf

(CA Vasuki H S)

Partner

Membership No. 212013
UDIN: 24212013BKCLQC2878

Place: Bangalore - OO
Date: April 23, 2024 TANTE



ANNEXURE-A REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WTC TRADES & PROIJECTS
PRIVATE LIMITED.

1. a)} A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets

b}  Management during the year has physically verified Property, Plant and Equipment as per a
phased program of physical verification. We are of the opinion that it is conducted at
reasonable intervals. We have been informed by the management that the discrepancies
noticed on such verification were not material and the same has been properly dealt with in
the books of account.

c) Based on our examination and the information and explanation furnished to us there are no
immoveable properties held by the Company during any point of time during the year and
accordingly the said clause 3(i)(c) is not applicable to the Company.

d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year and accordingly provisions of clause
3(i}(d) is not applicable to the Company.

e) According to the information and explanation given to us and as represented to us by the
Company, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)
and rules made thereunder and accordingly provisions of clause 3(i)(e) is not applicable to
the Company.

2. a) The Company has conducted physical verification of inventory during the year and in our
opinion at reasonable intervals and in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed.

b) The Company has not been sanctioned, any working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, during any point of time of the year from banks or financial institutions
on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, clause 3(ii}(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

3. The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

a  The sub provisions of clause 3 ii (c) (sub para A and B}, sub para (c) to (f} of the order is not
applicable. L&

¢



b  The investments made during an earlier year are not prejudicial to the interest of the
Company.

Based on the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
given guarantees and securities as referred in the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act.

The Company has not accepted any deposits as applicable under the directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other provisions of the Act
and rules framed under. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v} of the said Order are not
applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the said Order are not applicable.

a) According to the records of the Company, it is regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, Goods and Service Tax and any
other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities as at March 31, 2024. There are no
undisputed dues outstanding for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

b)  According to the records of the Company and according to the information and explanation
given to us, there were no statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a), outstanding that have
not been deposited on account of any dispute except in case of certain income tax dues as
detailed in note 30 to the audited financial statements which is furnished below:

Name | Nature of the | Amount (Rs. In | Period to which | Forum where dispute
of the | dues Lakhs) the amount | is pending

Statue relates

The Income tax | 513.51 Various years | Commissioner of
income | demands covering from A.Y | Income Tax (Appeals)
Tax 2013-14 to AY

Act, 2022-23.

1961

According to the information and explanation provided and as represented to us by the
management there are no transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(viii) of the said Order are not
applicable.

a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

d)

f)

b)

As represented to us by the Company, we are informed that the company is not declared
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

As per the information and explanations provided by the Company, all term loans were
applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. There were no fresh term loans
taken by the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations provided by the Company there are no funds
raised on short term basis that have been utilised for long term purposes.

According to the information and explanation provided by the Company and as represented
to us, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

According to the information and explanation provided by the Company and as represented
to us, the company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

According to the information and explanation provided by the Company and as represented
to us, there were no moneys raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of
the said Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanation provided by the Company and as represented
to us, there were no preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(x}(b) of the said Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanation provided by the Company and as represented to
us, there were no fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or
reported during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xi)(a) to (c) of the said Order are
not applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the said Order
are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and as represented
to us by the management, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of the Act and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

a)

b)

According to the information and explanation given to us and as represented to us by the
management, the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

The reports of the Internal Auditors for the year under audit were considered by us.




15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

As represented to us by the management and according to the information and explanation given
to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the said Order are not
applicable.

a. According to the information and explanation given, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b.  According to the information and explanation given, the company has not conducted any
Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of
Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

c.  According to the information and explanation given, the company is not a Core Investment
Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly,
clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d. According to the information and explanation given, the Group has no CIC as part of the
Group. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi){d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There is no resignation of statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company
as and when they fall due.

a. According to the information and explanation furnished and as represented to us by the
Company in respect of other than ongoing projects, the company has no unspent amount to
be transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with
second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act.

| Y\‘?}% |



b.  According to the information and explanation furnished and as represented to us by the
Company, provisions of section 135 of the Act is not applicable to the extent of ongoing
projects and accordingly, clause 3(xx) (b) of the Order is not applicable

21. The Company does not prepare any consolidated financial statements and hence provisions of
clause 3(xx) of the said Order are not applicable.

For B. K. RAMADHYANI & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0028785/5200021

\/m ol [f/ﬂ :

(CA Vasuki H S)

Partner

Membership No. 212013
UDIN: 24212013BKCLQC2878

Place: Bangalore
Date: April 23, 2024



ANNEXURE-B REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2 (f) UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL
AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WTC TRADES &
PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”):

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of WTC Trades & Projects
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls:

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal contro! stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error,




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting:

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting:

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion:

In our opinion, the Company, in all material respects, has an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on “the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B. K. RAMADHYANI & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0028785/5200021

Pl

(CA Vasuki H S)

Partner

Membership No. 212013
UDIN: 24212013BKCLQC2878

Place: Bangalore
Date: April 23, 2024



VTC Trades & Projects Private Limited
Balance Sheet As at March 31, 2024
(All @mounts i1 11d’an Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

|

Particulars | NoteNo | AsatMar31, 2024 | AsatMar31,2023

ASSETS: ' !
Non-Current Assets: 4

Property, Plant & Feuinmont 3 i 304.75 391831
Intangiole Asset 3 | 155.87 208 24
Intangib'e Asset Under Development 3 | 929.65 929 65
Financial Assets !

- Investments 5 ! 5,103.00 5,540.50
Deferred Tax Asscts (Net) 4 'I 63.90

Other Non Current Assets 6 H 49.35 0.1%
Assets for Current tax 7 165.71 634.61
Current Assets: !

inventories 8 385.71 298 38
Financial Asset

- Trade Receivables 9 3,257.38 2,563.56
- Cash & Cash Eguivalents i0 372.96 1,914.31
- Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents 11 | 4,272.00 931.86
- Other Current Financial Assets 12 | 101.20 29.46

Other Current Assets b 33255 283.24
TOTAL ASSETS: - 15,494.03 13,725.72
EQUITY & UABILITIES:

EQUITY: I

Equity & Share Capital 13 600.50 600.50
Other Equity 14 7,644.91 5,363.99
LIABILITIES:

Non-Current Liabilities:

Lease Liabilities 83.04 157.86
Other Non Current Financial Liabilities 15 1,502.42 1,079.19
Other Non-Current Liabilities 16 | 17.30 20.73
Non current provisions 17 | 34.22 25.27
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 4 | - 2.69
Current Liabilities:

Financial Liabilities:

-Borrowings 18 | - 1,700.00
-Lease Liabilities | 74.82 67.35
-Trade Payable to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise 19 104.31 659.85
-Trade Payable to Other than Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise 1% 4,603.01 2,905.66
-Other Current Financial Liabilities 15 313.78 770.12
Other Current Liabilities 16 503.70 352.25
Provisions 17 12.02 20.26
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 15,494.03 13,725.72 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the IND AS financial statements

In accordance with our report of even date

For B K Ramadhyani & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited

Firm number: 002878S / $200021

f [ >

e IS

{CA Vasuki H S) { Wi (Nirupa Shdnkar)

Partner irector
Membership no.: 212013 DIN : 06362115 NJ: 02750342
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 23, 2024 Date: April 23, 2024 Date: April 23, 2024

B K RAMADHYANT & CO. LLP
CHARTEREDR ACCOUNTANTS
No €&, #4-1, Cnii

dirzpur Bhavan,
8th Main, 15th Cross, Malleswaram,
BANGALORE - 560 065



WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited
Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
{(Alt amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

For the year ended

Particulars Note No = iy
Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023

Income:
Revenue from Operations 20 13,947.82 10,9C3.14
Other Income 21 724.32 3,541.36
Total Income - 14,672.14 14,444.50
Expenses:
Cost of Materials Consumed 22 748.50 771.40
Employee Benefit Expense 23 1,723.35 1,389.96
Finance Costs 24 51.54 90.64
Depreciation & Amortization Expense 3 200.07 221.38
Other Expenses 25 8,880.78 7,382.97
Total Expenses - 11,604.24 9,856.35
Profit / (loss) before Exceptional Items & Tax 3,067.90 4,588.15
Exceptional items
Reversal of Stamp Duty Charges on scheme of arrangement 61.40
Profit / (loss) before Tax 3,067.90 4,649.55
Tax expense: 4
-Current Tax 838.87 416.19
-Deferred Tax (62.88) (20.18)
Total tax expense N 775.99 396.01
Profit / (loss) for the year T 2,291.91 4,253.54
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)
Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (14.70) (10.27)
Income tax relating to above (3.70) (2.58)
Other comprehensive income ('OCI') (11.00) (7.69)
Total comprehensive income for the year (comprising profit/(loss) and
OCl for the year) 2,280.91 4,245.85
Earning Per Equity Share -
Earnings per equity share
[nominal value of share Rs.10 (March 31, 2024: Rs.10)]
Basic 38.17 86.26
Diluted 38.17 76.41
Basic (After Exceptional ftem) 38.17 79.97
Diluted (After Exceptional Item) 38.17 70.83

The acCompanying notes are an integral part of the IND AS financial statements

In accordance with our report of even date

For B K Ramadhyani & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm number; 002878S / $200021

Ve I

(CA vasuki H S} (
Partner
Membership no.: 212013

Place: Bengaluru
Date:; April 23, 2024

eet Verma)
Directo
DIN : 06362115

Place: Bengaluru

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 23,2024 Date: April 23, 2024



WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on March 31, 2024
(Allamounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)
Particulars T Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Clush flows from operating activities
Profit before tax from continuing operations 3,067.90 4,649.55
Profit before tax 3,067.90 4,649.55
Adjustments to reconclle profit before tsx to net cash flows:
Depreciation and impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment 200.07 221.38
Interest adjustment towards Ind AS 116 (23.02) 320.33
Interest adjustment towards Ind AS 109 (28.09) (69.26)
Interest Income (153.81) (90.82)
Interest Expense 51.11 90.64
Dividend Income (3,099.60)
Accrued interest 17.23
Loss on sale of investments 87.50
Actuarial gain/loss transferred to OCI (14.70) {10.27)
Movement In Working Capital
Increase/ (Decrease) in other non current assets (49.25) -
Increase/ (Decrease} in trade & other payables (456.34) -
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables 1,141.81 1,573.52
Increase/ (Decrease) in financial liabilities 151.45 2.46
Lease (67.35) (399.10)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Provisions 0.71 12.29
Increase/ (Decrease) in other liabilities (3.41) 27.93
{Increase)/ Decrease in Other Non Current Liabilities 423.23 .
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables (693.82) (264.55)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventory (87.33) (218.91)
{Increase)/ Decrease in Loans & Advances (71.74) -
(Increase)/ Decrease in financial assets - 13.51
(Increase)/ Decrease in other assets (49.31) (118.45)
3,442.84 2,640.65
Income tax (paid)/ refund {369.98) (752.77)
Net cash flows from operating activities 3,072.86 1,887.88
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (60.65) (363.64)
Interest received (finance income} 136.58 61.37
Dividend Income - 3,099.60
Proceeds from sale/maturity of Bonds 350.00 -
Investment in group Company - (5,106.44}
Investment in deposits (3,340.14) 2,340.63
Net cash flows from investing activities — (2,914.21) 31.51
Financing activities
Interests Paid (21.37)
Dividend Paid (3,092.58)
Proceeds from Loan 2,700.00
Repayment of Loan {1,700) (1,000.00)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (1,700.00) (1,413.95)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,541.35} 505.44
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period / year 1,914.31 1,408.87
Cash and cash equivalents at period / year end* 372.96 1,914.31
*Cash and cash equivalents Include :
-In current accounts 263.58 1,573.00
-In Deposits {ess than 3 months Maturity 108.86 338.12
Cash on hand 0.52 3.19
Total 372.96 1,914.31

For B K Ramadhyani & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Fil WB?? 7Ls%ﬂtmi!l
i ] i

(YA Vastiki H $) it "

Partner

Membership no.: 212(&8

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 23, 2024

or and on behalf of the board of directors g

(Viheet Ve )
Director
DIN : 06362115

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 23, 2024

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 23, 2024



WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited
Notes to Standalone IND AS Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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2.2

BACKGROUND:

The financial statements comprise financial statements of WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited ‘the Company') for the perlod ended March 31, 2024.

The Company Is a private lImited Company domiciled in India and Is Incorporated under the provisions of the Companles Act applicable in india. It is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Brigade Enterprises Limited whose shares are listed on two recognised stock exchanges in India. The reglstered office of the Company Is located at #4th Floor,
World Trade Centre, Brigade Gateway campus,26/1, Dr. Rajkumar Road, Bengaluru - 560055

The aforesald financlal statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on April 23, 2024.

The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed a merger of Tandem Allied Services Private Limited, its Subsldlary Company with the Company. The Company has
approved a draft Scheme of Amalgamation (“the Scheme) on May 3, 2023 which will be in due course filed with respective statutory authorities {National Company Law
Tribunal {"the Tribunal"}) under section 230 to 232 of the Act.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Basls of preparation

In accordance with the notification Issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affalrs, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards {‘Ind AS’} notlfied under the
Companies (Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 with effect from April 1, 2016. The standalone financial statements of the Company are prepared and presented In
accordance with [nd AS.

The dalone financlal st ts have been prepared on the historlcal cost basls, except for certaln financlal instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting perlod, as explained In the accounting policles below. Historical cost Is generally based on the falr value of the conslideratlon glven In exchange for goods and
services,

Summary of significant accounting policles:
a) Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with Ind AS requlres the 1t to make judg , estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and llabllitles and the disclosure of contingent llabilitles, at the end of the reporting perlod. Although these estimates are based on
the manag t's best k ledge of current events and actions, uncertalnty about these assumptions and estimates could result In the outcomes requlring a materlal
ad)ustment to the carrying amounts of assets or llabllities In future perlods. Any revision to accounting estimates Is recognlzed prospectively.

b} Current versus non-current classificatlon:

The Company presents assets and liabilltles in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classlfication.

An asset Is treated as current when It is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed In normal operating cycle.

- Held primarlly for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be reallsed within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a llabllity for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A llabllity Is treated as current when:

- it Is expected to be settled In normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- It s due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting perlod, or

- There Is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the llabllity for at least twelve months after the reporting perlod.
Deferred tax assets/ liabllities are classified as non-current assets/ llabllities.

All other llabilitles are classifled as non-current.




WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited
#otes to Standalone IND AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

c) Property, Plant and Equipment:
(i} Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, it any The cost comprises purchasc
price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to 1ts working condition for the intended use Any trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price

(ii) Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in refation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately This applies
mainly to components fo, machinery When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in income statement as and wher:

incurred

(iii} Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from its previously
assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and
cost of replacing parts, are charged to the income statement for the period during which such expenses are incurred

{iv) An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset} is included in the income statement when the Property, plant and equipment is de-recognized

(v} Costs of licence fees paid, where operations have not started as at the balance sheet date are disclosed under Intangible Assets under Development

{vi) Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under other non
current assets

{vii} Pursuant to notification of the applicability of component approach from the financial year commencing from April 1, 2015, the Company has determined
significant components of their assets as at April 1, 2015 and wherever, the useful life of such significant components was different from useful life of the asset,
the carrying amount attributable to such components as at April 1, 2015 is being depreciated over the revised remaining useful life of such components.

{viii] Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is capitalized to the extent to which
the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the
construction period which is neither related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the income statement

{ix) Costs of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work- in- progress.

d) Depreciation:
Depreciatjon is calculatod on written down value method using the following useful lives estimated by the management, as specified in Schedule Il to the Companies

Nature of Asset S _ Useful life

Plant & Machinery 15 years

|Electrical equipment 15 years

Electrical & Electronics -OPMSL "10 years

Office equipment 15 years (certain assets between
2 to 5 years)

Motor Vehicles 8 years

Computers & Software ~ |3Years

Fire fighting system 15 Years

Furniture & Fittings 10 y.e.ars_

Depreciation on License Fees capitalised during the year, is depreciated on Straight Line Method with a useful life of 10 years.

e) Impairment :
1) Financial Asset:
The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit
losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not
constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses
or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

2} Non-financial asset:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired, If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’'s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount, In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. {f no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used

impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over
its remaining useful life




WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited
atotes to Standalone IND AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

f)

v

v

v v

8

h)

Leases:

Where the Company is L essee:

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract A
contract is, or contains, a lease if tha contract conveys the right to cantrel the use of an dentified asset for a period of time i exchange for consideration To assess
whether a contract conveys the right 1o control the use of ar identifiea asset, the Company assesses whether

{i) the contact involves the use of an identified asset

{ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the

period of the lease

{iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in
which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these shart-term and low value leases, the
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these
options when it is reasanably certain that they will be exercised

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset
Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable, For the
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use} is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases, Lease liabilities are remeasured
with a corresponding adjustment ta the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination
option

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows
The borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities for discounting is 10.5%

Where the Company is Lessor:

Lease income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease including lease income on fair value of refundable security
deposits, unless the lease agreement explicitly states that increase is on account of inflation. Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Revenue Recognition:

(i} Facility Managements fees has been accounted on accrual basis as and when the services are rendered

(ii) Royalty fees is accounted on accrual basis.

{iii) Income from business centre is accounted on accrual basis.

{iv} In respect of electricity charges and utility charges, the recoveries (billing to customers) are in the nature of reiumbursement of expenses and hence duly netted

(v} Revenue from the sale of goods shall be recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

(a) the entity has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

(b} the entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
{c) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(d) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; and

{e) the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

{vi) When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with the transaction shall be recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when al! the
following conditions are satisfied:

(a) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(b} it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;

(c) the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period can be measured reliably; and
{d) the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably

{vii} The Company derives revenue primarily from Property Management Services ("PMS"). Revenue is recongised upon transfer of control of services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to receive for those services.
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal
in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer,

{viii) Interest income, including income arising from other financial instruments measured at amortised cost, is recognized using the effective interest rate method

Employee Benefits:
{i) Short term employee benefits:
The employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries,
leave travel allowance, short term compensated absences etc. and the expected cost of bonus are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the
related service.

(i) Long term employee benefits:
{a) Defined Contribution Plans:
The Company has contributed to state governed provident fund scheme, employee’s state insurance scheme and employee pension scheme which
are defined contribution plans. The contribution paid/ payable under the schemes is recognised during the period in which employee renders the
related service.
(b} Defined Benefit Plans:
Gratuity, which is a defined benefit plan, is accrued based on an independent actuarial valuation, which is done based on projected unit credit
method as at the balance sheet date. The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or liability.
Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/ (asset} are recognized in other comprehensive income. In accordance
with Ind AS, re-measurement gains and losses on defined benefit plans recognized in OCI are not to be subsequently reclassilied to statement of
profit and loss. As required under Ind AS compliant Schedule 1, the Company recognizes re-measurement gains and losses on defined benefit plans
(net of tax) to retained earnings.
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at the reporting date,
The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement
purposes, Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, made at
the end of each financial year, Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss. The Company presents the
accumulated leave liability as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve
months after the reporting date
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date,
The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management
considers the interest rates of government bonds

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortzlity tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic
changes, Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates and expected salary increase thereon.




WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited
Ivotes to Standalone IND AS Flnancial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

i) Income Taxes:
Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred lax asset or liability during the year. Current and defarred tax are recognized in
the statement of profit and loss, except when they reiate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current

and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income o+ directly in equity, respectively

ii)

i)

Current Income Tax:

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the
taxable income for that period The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date.

Deferred income Tax:

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach, deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the
time of the transaction

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilized

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT):

MAT paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that
there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be
carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in
respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under Deferred Tax Asset. Under the income Tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of
profit and loss and shown as ‘MAT Credit Entitlement’ under deferred tax. The Company reviews the same at each reporting date and writes down the asset to
the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Segment reporting:

i)

ii)

iii)

Identification of segments:

The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of services provided, with each segment representing a
strategic business unit that offers different services to different markets. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which major operating
divisions of the Company operate

Unallocated items
Unallocated items include general corporate asset, liability, income and expense items which are not allocated to any business segment

Segment accounting policies
The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the
Company as a whole




WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited
Notes to Standalone IND AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

k)

m}

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in
dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted
for events such as bonus issue that have changed the number of eguity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

Provisions and Contingent liabilities:

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time
value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements

Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and iiabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or

financial liability.

i) Cash & Cash equivalents:
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents, Cash and cash equivalents consist of
balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage

i) Financial assets at amortized cost:
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

iii} Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

iv} Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on
initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
immediately recognized in statement of profit and loss

v) Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent consideration recognized in a business
combination which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet
date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

vi) De-recognition of financial instruments:
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the
transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged or cancelled or expires

vif) Fair value of financial instruments:
In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses following hierarchy and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks
existing at each reporting date fair value hierarchy

viii) Investments in subsidiary:
Investments in subsidiary is carried at cost




WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited
~otes to Standalone IND AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

n) Intangible assets:

o)

p)

(i) Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on intial cost Subsequently, carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

{ii) Intangible assets comprising of computer software is amortised on a written down value method over a period of three years as estimated by the management

{ii} Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as a difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when asset is derecognised

Inventorles:

{i) Inventories include stores, spares & consumables and are valed at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower

(i) Cost is ascertained on weighted average basis and includes expenses incurred to bring the goods to its present location and condition Net realisable value is the

estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost necessary to make the sale

Cash flow statement:
Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from eperating , financing and investing activities of the Company are segregated.

Forelgn Currency Transactions

{i) Foreign Currency Transactions-The functional and presentation currency of the Company is the Indian rupee

{ii} Transactions and translations- Foreign currency transactions are recorded using the exchange rates at the dates of the transaction. For foreign currency
transactions settled through advance received from customers, if any, the exchange rate is considered to be the same as the rate at which such advance was realised
Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are restated into the functional currency using exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date.
Gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement of foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are included in the statement of profit and
loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis within "Other income/{expense)".

2.3 Significant accounting Judgements, estimates and assumptlons:
The preparation of the Company’s standalone financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the acCompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result In outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods

a)

(b)

Judgements:
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Estimates and assumptions:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and fiabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based Its assumptions and estimates on
parameters avallable when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.




WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Allamounts in lnslan Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

A ity share cipital

{1} Cucrent Mepiuitlsg Period

Balance at the heginning of
the current ropurting
period

Changes o Eguity,
Sharo Capltal duo to
yitlor peeiod ermors

Restatad halunce
Changes i egquity

at the beginning
o N caphtal during

of the eurrem
reprting pecod

the curiei year

Aalunce at the and of
he euirrent reporting
peeriod

.J\\ at March J%, RBM

{11} Previous Repeithng Period

[ A)

T

Balance at the beginning of
Ve previous reporting
poriod

Changes in Equity
Share Capital duw ta
prior period errors

Rettated balance
atthe heginning
of the provieus
raparting peclod

Changes in equity
share capltal during
the corrent year

Aalunce at the ond of
the pravious reporting
period

Ag at Nl 31, 2023

G050

313.00

513.50

B. Other equity

{1} Current Reporting Period

Amount received against

Hesorves and Surplus

share warrants General Reserve Securitles Capital reserve Retained earnings Total
o Promiun)

As at March 31, 2023 115.22 187.50 50.69 5,010.58 5,363.99
Profit for the year - - - 2,291.91 2,291.91
Other comprehensive income* - - - (11.00)| {11.00)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 115.22 187.50 50.69 7,291.50 7,644.91
Transfer from/({to) retained earnings - - . - -
Dividend and Dividend Distribution Tax . - = - -

As at March 31, 2024 115.22 187.50 50.69 7,291.50 7,644.91
{ii) Previous Reporting Period

Resorves and Surploy
Amount received against ==
Securities Total
share warrants General Reserve Capltal reserve Retalned earnings
Premlum

As at March 31,2022 115.22 187.50 50.69 3,857.31 4,210.72
Profit for the year - - - 4,253.54 4,253.54
Other comprehensive income* . . _ - {7.69) {7.69)
Total comprehenslve iIncome for the year 115.22 187.50 50.69 8,103.16 B,456.57
Transfer from/({to) retained earnings . - . & .
Dividend and Dividend Distribution Tax - - - 13.092,58) (3,093)
As at March 31, 2023 115.22 187.50 50.69 5 5,363.99

C. Nature and purpose of reserves:

i. General Reserve:

ii. Retained Earnings

It comprises of the accumulated profits of the Company.

The General reserve is a free reserve which is used from time to time to transfer profits [rom retained earnings for appropriation purposes As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one cmponent of
equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income
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WTC Trades & Prajects Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Note 13 Share capital (tn Lakhs)
i Authorised share capital As at Mar 31, 2024 As at Mar 31, 2023 -
No. Rs. No. Rs.
Equity shazes of Rs 10 each:
Balance at the beginning of the year 70.00 700.00 70.00 700.00
Inciease/{decrease) during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 70.00 __70.00 ___700.00
= (In Lakhs)
i Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital : As at Mar 31, 2024 As at Mar 31, 2023
No. Rs. No. Rs.
Equity shares of Rs.10 each:
Balance at the beginning of the year 60.05 600.50 28.75 287.50
Issued during the year - . 31.30 313.00
Reduced during the year - o
Balance at the end of the year o 60.05 600.50 60.05 600.50

Terms/ rlghts attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares
and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of director is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
meeting

In event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

iii Share application recelved during the year ) As at Mar 31, 2024 As at Mar 31. 2023
- No. Rs. No. Rs.
Share application received during the year pending allotment - . -
Total ) == - -
iv. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the C o As at Mar 31, 2024 As at Mar 31, 2023
No % holding No. % lokding
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully pald
Brigade Enterprises Limited & its nominees 60.03 99.96% 28.74 0.48
Total - - - - &

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the
above shareholding represent both legal and beneficial ownership of shares

v Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Promoter Name No of Shares % of total shares |% of change
o durlng the year
Rrisa'rlie, Enterprises | imited 60.02,522 99.96% 0%
Mr. M. . Jaishankar® 100 0.00% 0%
Ms._ Nirupa Shankar* 413 001% 0%|
Ms Gita Shankar* | 100 0.00% 0%
MR laishankar Ms Gita Shanka® 100 0.00% 0%
NLR. daishankar  Ms, Nirupa Shankar* 100 0.00% 0%|
Ms, Gita Shankar Ms. Nlrupa Shankar* 100 0.00% 0%
Mr. Vineet Verma* 313 0.01% 0%
Mr Pradyumna Krishna Kuma* 313 0.01% 0%|
Mr. Suresh Yadwad* - o 313 0.01% 0%
M, frlys Mallya® 313 001% 0%
M1, Amar Mysore* 313 0.01% 0%
Total 60,05,000 100%
For the year ended March 31, 2023
Promoter Name No of Shares % of total shares |% of change
durlnp the year
Rrigade Enterprises Limited 60.02,522 99 96% 108.80%
Mr.M_R_Jaishankar* 100 — oo00% 0.00%
Ms, Nirupa Shankar* 413 0.01% 0.01%
Ms. Gita Shankar* 100 0.00% 0.00%:
M.R_Jaishankar & Ms Gita Shanka* 100 0.00% 0.00%
M.R laishankar & Ms. Nirupa Shankar* 100 0.00% 0,00%
Ms. Gita Shankar & Ms. Nirupa Shankar* 1 100 - 0.00% 0.00% ——
Mr. Vineet Verma* 313 0.01% 0.01% \‘\' \
Mr Pradyumna Krishna Kuma* 313 0.01% 0.01% N
Mr. Suresh Yadwad - 313 0.01% 0.01% BENGALUR 1<
Ms. Priva Mallya* 313 0.01% 001% 560 055 v
Mr. Amar Mysore* 313 0.01% 0.01% . by
Total 60,05,000 100%




WTC Trade: & Projects Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{all amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Nate 14

Note 15

Note 16

Note 17

Note 18

(iMa)

(iiy

Other Equity

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2024 As at Mar 31, 2023
Securities premium account

Balance at the beginning of the year 18750 187 50
Add: Transferred from retained earnings

Balance at the end of the year 187.50 187.50
Capital Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 5069 50,62
Add: Transferred from retained earnings

Balance at the end of the year 50.69 50.69
General reserve:

Balance at the beginning of the year 11522 11522
Add: Transferred from retained earnings =

Balance at the end of the year 115.22 115.22
Retained earnings :

Balance at the beginning of the year 5,010.58 3,857 31
Add: Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 2,28091 4,245 85
Less: Dividend and Dividend Distribution Tax Paid during the

year (3,092.58)
Net surplus/{deficit) in the statement of profit and loss 7,291.50 5,010.58
Total Other Equity 7,644,91 5,363.99

i. General Reserve:

The General reserve is a free reserve which is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the

general reserve is created by a transfer from one cmponent of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income.

il. Retained Earnings

It comprises of the accumulated profits of the Company.

Other Financial Liablilties

Non Current Current
Partlculars
As at Mar 31, 2024 As at Mar 31, 2023 As at Mar 31, 2024 | As at Mar 31, 2023
o
Security deposit received /CAM deposit 505,32 82.09 240.92 718.81
Sinking Fund Deposit 997.10 997.10 - -
Other short term deposit 48.99 31.63
Other financial liabilities 23.87 19.68
Tatal 1,502.42 1,079.19 313.78 770.12
Other Liabillties
Non Current Current
Particulars
As at Mar 31, 2024 As at Mar 31, 2023 As at Mar 31, 2024 | As at Mar 31, 2023
Income received in advance (IND AS 109) 17.30 20.73 18.86 19.64
Statutory dues payable 181.00 106.67
Payable to employees 136.40 83.84
Advances from Customers 166.31 142.10
Payables- Others 1.13
Total 17.30 20.73 503.70 352.25
Provlisions
Non Current Current
Particulars
As at Mar 31, 2024 As at Mar 31, 2023 As at Mar 31, 2024 | Asat Mar 31, 2023
Gratuity . - 1141
Leave Encashment 34,22 25.27 12.02 8.85
Total 34.22 25.27 12.02 20.26
BorrowlIngs : Short Term {(Unsecured)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2024 As at Mar 31, 2023
BENGALUR(
Borrowings from Related Party 1,700.00 560 055
Total 1,700.00




WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Note 19

Trade payables

. As at Mar 31, 2024 As at Mar 31, 2023
Particulars
Rs. Rs.
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 104 31 659.85
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 4,064.79 2,698.00
Payable to related parties {refer note 28} 538.22 207.66
Total 4,707.32 3,565.51
Trade Payahle Agelng Schedule:
As at Mar 31, 2024 As at Mar 31, 2023 As at Mar 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Undisputed dues Undisputed dues Disputed dues Disputed dues
MSME Others MSME Others MSME Others MSME Others
(a) not due 8.18 1,599.31 7.38 1,148.03
8.18 1,599.31 7.38 1,148.03 & = =
(b} O/s for the following periods from
due date of pavment
Less than 6 Months 96.13 1,898.44 652.47 1,503.75 -
6 Months - 1 Year - 395.09 - 1878
1-2Years = 171.85 - 21.18 -
2 -3 Years - N 6.26 =
More than 3 Years ~ =
Others - - - - - - -
96.13 2,465.48 652.47 1,549.97 B z - -
{c) Payables to related parties
Less than 6 Months . 44393 - 149.43 = -
6 Months - 1 Year - 247 - 5823 = -
1-2Years - 91.82 -
2 -3 Years - - -
More than 3 Years - -
Others - - - - -
- 538.22 207.66 - -
Total {a+b+c} 104,31 4,603.01 659.85 2,905.66 - - - -

BENGAL';IU‘J
560 (75
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WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Note 20 Revenue from operations

Year Ended March

Year Ended March

Particulars 31,2024 31,2023

Revenue from Maintenance services 13,451.99 10,494.47
Management Fee 428.63 342.88
Maintenance Service Others 67.20 65.79
Total 13,947.82 10,903.14

Note 21 Other Income

Year Ended March

Year Ended March

Particulars 31,2024 31,2023
Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost:
On bank deposits 102.37 37.97
On Others 28.70 37.44
On Income tax Refund 22.74 15.41
Income on Derecognition of Lease - 14.69
On CAM/security deposits 28.28 20.80
Notional Gain -IREDA Bond - 32.90
Income from Subleasing 150.21 135.80
Income from Events /BD Activities 264.05 77.60
Dividend Received - 3,099.60
Sale Of Scrap 30.84 19.98
Miscellaneous Income 97.13 49.16
Total 724.32 3,541.36




WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated}

Note 22 Cost of Raw Materials, Components & Stores Consumed

Year Ended March | Year Ended
Particulars 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Inventory at the beginning of the year 298.38 79.47
Add: Purchases 835.83 990.31
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 385,71 298.38
Cost of Raw Materials, Components 8 Stores Consumed 748.50 771.40
Note 23  Employee Benefit Expenses
Year Ended March| Year Ended
Particulars 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries and wages 1,559.99 1,283.30
ESOP 42.40 -
Gratuity 17.27 12.96
Leave Encashment 17.90 11.13
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 25.66 41,52
Staff welfare expenses 60.13 41.05
Total 1,723.35 1,389.96
Note 24 Finance costs
Year Ended March| Year Ended
Particulars 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest expenses on CAM/security deposit 28.09 20.41
Bank Charges 0.43 0.97
Interest expense Others 23.02 69.26
Total 51.54 90.64
Note 25 Other Expenses
Year Ended March| Year Ended
Particulars 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Parking Expenses 660.81 488.60
Less: Reimbursement (660.81) (488.60)
Parking Expenses - Net off Reimbursement 0.00 -
Power & Fue! 13,517.53 10,558.23
Less: Reimbursement (12,848.86) (9,897.15)
Power & Fuel - Net off Reimbursement 668.67 661.08
Legal & Professional Charges 1,087.06 1,042.86
Audit Fees 14.60 15.33
Security Charges 1,894.80 1,745.53
Repairs and Maintenance
Building 1,897.32 1,554.18
Plant & Machinery 1,217.87 984.35
Others 565.83 331.10
Membership & Subscription 65.98 38.82
Rates & Taxes 62.08 75.42
Licence Fees 27.08 8.21
Marketing & Business Development cost 918.42 641.27
Travel & Local Conveyance 108.06 77.18
Training and recruitment expenses 11.44 26.56
Communication Cost 20.18 21.02
Bad Debt Written Off 23.86 -
Provision for Doubtful Debt 29.96 0.96
Printing & Stationery 10.59 10.17
Donation (Including CSR Expenditure) 65.00 41.00
Director's Sitiing Fee & Commission 0.80 1.00
Welfare Expenses - Outsourced Manpower 43.44
Loss on Investment 87.50 -
Miscellaneous 60.24 106.94
Total 8,880.78 7,382.97
Payment to Auditors:
Auditor 7.70 7.70
Taxation matters 2.00 2.00
Reiumbursement of expenses 4,90 5.63
Total 14.60 15.33
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WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
Related party disclosure

Note 27 |(i) Related parties where control exists Abbreviations
Holding Company Brigade Enterprise Limited "BEL"
Fellow Subsidiaries Brigade Hospitality Services Limited "BHSL"
Brigade Tetrarch Private Limited "BTPL"
Brigade Estates and Projects Private Limited "BEPPL"
Brigade Properties Private Limited "BPPL"
Brigade Infrastructure and Power Private Limited "BIPPL"
BCV Developers Private Limited "BDPL"
SRP Prosperita Hotel Ventures Limited (formerly Prosperita Hotel Ventures Limited) ~ "PHVL"
Celebrations LLP (formerly Celebration Catering and Events LLP} "CLLP"
Brigade (Gujarat) Projects Private Limited "BGPPL"
Brookefield Real Estates and Projects Private Limited "BBREPL"
Perungudi Real Estates Private Limited "PREPL"
Augusta Club Private Limited "ACPL"
Mysore Projects Private Limited "MPPL"
Brigade Hotel Ventures Limited "BHVL"
Brigade Flexible Office Space, LLP "BFOSLLP"
Brigade Innovations LLP "BILLP"
Tetrarch Developers Limited “ToL"
Vibrancy Real Estates Private Limited "VREPL"
Venusta Ventures Private Limited "VVpL"
Zoiros Projects Private Limited "ZPPL"
Propel Capital Ventures LLP "PCVLLP"
Tetrarch Real Estates Private Limited "TREPL"
BCV Real Estates Private Limited "BREPL"

Enterprise owned or

Significantly influenced by~ Mysore Holdings Private Limited "MHPL"

KMP

Subsidiary Tandem Allied Services Private Limited (w.ef 30-6-2022) "TASPL"

(i) Related parties under Ind AS 24 with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Associates BCV Estates Private Limited "BEPL"
CV Properties (Bangalore) Private Limited "CPPL"

Key management personnel Vineet Verma

("KMP") Ms. Nirupa Shankar

Relatives of "KMP" Mr. M.R. Jaishankar
Ms. Githa Shankar




It Related party transactlons

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered inlo with related parties for the relevant financial year:

a. Sale/ purchase of goods, services and capital assets and advances glven

Tranaartions during the year

31-Mar-2j|

Related parties where I Aimn b Finance Cost Lease rentals v isor i
control enlsts i Wihet lnermn Leana Takan Purchase of services | Usnutianpald | {Interest onlease | (Purchase of 3 ";";'I Cruati
e Habitiy) serulce] L
BEL 7] 153313 51216 269 8787 170000
BEL 13 1,139.18 2,70000 37629 W 9287| 1,00000 3,09257
BHSL 3hetaar g4 7.05) 2796
BHSL 3 -bhar 21 5.5q] 3999
BHVL SRR 21814, 5113
BHVL TRIME T 184.00) 2213
BEL Gateway Campus 31-Mar-24] 807 12350
BEL Gateway Campus 31-Mar-23 527 7537
BPPL 31-Mar-24 573.55)
BPPL 31-Mar-23 8681
PREPL ETRENET 203 69|
PREPL 1197
TASPL
TASPL 15477 3,099.60
BTPL 31 -Mar- 34| 1,50
BTPL SRR IR 200
BDPL EIRINET
BDPL TREIE
IMET ETRTAE 3100
IMET 34-har-24] 3000
8FOS 31-Mar-2¢| 7103
8FOS 31-Mar-23| 0.46
SRP 31-Mar-24 0.36]
SRP 31-Mar-23 035
MHPL 31-Mar-24 239
MHPL 31-Mar-23
BGPPL 31-Mar-24 43,02
BGPPL 31-Mar-23
Mr. M R Jabhankar 31:-Mar-24
Mr M A Jaishankar 31-Mar-23 207
Ms_ Githa Shankar 31-Mar-26 22g
Ms.Githa Shankar 31-Mar-23 196
Bt Mirgs Bhaniar 31-Mar-24 12€
M. Niiupa Shadar 31-Mar-23|
b. Relmbursemant pald/ vecaivad
1 T
alsted parties whore — of of of
contral nliis Expenses pald Lapnnies Hacnhiid Income pald Income pald
BEL 31-Mar-24 27.8¢ 25¢ 1177
BEL 31-Mar-23 119 34 8y
BPPL 31-Mar-24 2.05
BPPL 31-Mar-21 245
BHVL 31-Mar-24 !
BHVL 31-Mar-24 000
BHSL 31-Mar-24 02y
BHSL 31-Mar-23
MHPL 31-Mar-24
MHPL 23] 221
. Remunn: nn
(1) salarles, Bonus end Contribution to PF*
Farticulars Yaar anded Fapunies Pagahln
Mr_ Vineet Verma 31-Mar-24




¢. Qutstanding balances as at March 31, 2024

Balances as at the year-end

Related parties where control exists | Year ended Trade Loan EESEIabliiy Lease liablilty Non
) Trade payable Current
receivable Current

BEL 31-Mar-24 210.17 74.82 83.04
BEL 31-Mar-23 136.69 1,700.00 67.35 157.86
BHSL 31-Mar-24 5.46

BHSL 31-Mar-23 3.24

BHVL 31-Mar-24 29.03

BHVL 31-Mar-23 2.73

BEL Gateway Campus 31-Mar-24 9.80

BEL Gateway Campus 31-Mar-23 10.83

BPPL 31-Mar-24 101.53

BPPL 31-Mar-23 111.01

PREPL 31-Mar-24 88.60

PREPL 31-Mar-23 2.53
TASPL 31-Mar-24 0.85
TASPL 31-Mar-23 3.07

BTPL 31-Mar-24 -

BTPL 31-Mar-23 1.18

BDPL 31-Mar-24

BDPL 31-Mar-23

IMET 31-Mar-24

IMET 31-Mar-23

BFOS 31-Mar-24 24.84

BFOS 31-Mar-23 0.28||
SRP 31-Mar-24
SRP 31-Mar-23

MHPL 31-Mar-24 0.05
MHPL 31-Mar-23
BGPPL 31-Mar-24 5.80
BGPPL 31-Mar-23

Mr. M.R. Jaishankar 31-Mar-24 0.07

Mr. M.R. Jaishankar 31-Mar-23 2.40
Ms. Githa Shankar 31-Mar-24 0.61
Ms. Githa Shankar 31-Mar-23 2.31
Ms. Nirupa Shankar 31-Mar-24 -
Ms. Nirupa Shankar 31-Mar-23




WWTE Trades & Projects Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
|l amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Note 28 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The entity’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables The main purpose of these financial liabilities is Lo finance the entity’s operations to support it
operations. The entily’s principal financial assets include investments, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that deiive directly from its operations

The entity is exposed to market risk and credit risk. The entity’s senior management oversees the management of these risks The entity’s senior management is supported by a
financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the entily The financial risk committee provides assurance fi
the entity's senior management that the entity’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial 1isks are identified, measured anit
managed in accordance with the entity’s policies and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have !
appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the entity’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative puiposes may be undertaken The Board of Directors suyieis
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below

i. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in maiket prices Market risk comprises three types of risk;
interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk, currency risk and commadity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings Thw
sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2013 The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that tiw
amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies. The analyses wxrludo
the impact of movement in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retitement obligations; ptovisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities

The assumption made in calculating the sensitivity analyses relate to the sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market
risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

ii. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will (luctuate because of changes in Interest rate The entity’s exposure to the risk of changes In
Interest rates relates primarily to the entity’s operating activities (when receivables or payables are subject to different interest rates) and the entity's net receivables or payables

iil. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The entity is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables}

Note 29  Disclosure on leasns:

(i) The following is the movement of lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2024

Partlculars et et
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 22520 624 30
Wavier of lease agreement (240.79)
Lease discount -

On account of modification lease/fresh lease/first time adoption of Ind AS 116 000 (94.22)
Finance cost accrued during the year 2052 28.78
Payment of lease liabilities (87.87) {92 B7)
Balance at the end of the year 157 86 22520

The Company does not face a liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabllities as and when thray
fall due.

(i) Details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2024 on undiscounted basis:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Less than one year 8787 87.87
One to five years 8787 175,74
More than five years
Total 175.74 263.61

BENGALURy

560 055




WL Trades & Projects Private Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
A1l amounts in Indian Rupeer Lakhs, except as olherwise stated)

Note 30 Corporate Social Responsibility:
In accordance to the requitement of section 135 of the Act, the Company is required to comply with the provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) rules made

thereunder. The amount 1equired to be conttibuted and speid under CSR is as undet -

Partacnbars Year Ended March 31, 2024 Year Ended March 31, 2023
a, Amount required tn he spent by the Company during the year 59.89 1 33.66
b. Amount of expenditure incurred - . 60.00 ) — 34.25
¢ Shortfall at the end of the vear (if any] 3 = : = I
d. Total of previous year shortfall - .
e. Reason for shortfall
. Nature of i 0 .

(i) Contribution to the Prime Minister's National Relief Fund or any other fund set
up by the Central Government or Lhe State Governments for socio-economic 60.00 30.00
|development and relief and funds for the welfare of the Scheduled Castes, the
Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and women, -
(i) Promotion of education o

(iiij Combating human immunodeliciency virus, acquired immune deficiency
syndrome, malaria and other diseases | - o
(iv) Ensuring enviranmental sustainability

4.25 |

Note 31  Capital Management:
The Company’s objectives of capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the return ta

shareholders, issue/ buyback shares or sell assets to reduce debt, The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustinents in light of changes in economic cond|tlaiis
and the requirements of the financial covenants.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity plus net debt as below,
- Equity includes equity share capital and all other equity components attributable to the equity holders

- Net Debt includes trade payables and other financial liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Other financial liabilities {non current & current) 1,816,20 3,549.31

Less: Ind AS -116 Recognition of Lease Liability (157.86) (225.20)
Trade payables 4,707.32 3,565.51

Less: Cash and bank balances* (372.96) (1,914.31)
Net debt (A} 5,992.70 4,975.31

Equity Share capital 600,50 600.50
Other Equity 7,644,91 5,363,99
Equity (B} 8,245.41 5,964.49
Equity plus net debt (C=A+B} 14,238.11 10,939.81
Gearing ratlo(D=A /() 0.42 0.45

The Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to achieve the objective of maximising shareholders value
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the current and previous years

WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts in indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Note 32 Segment reporting:
i) Director of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker {"CODM"} as defined in [nd AS 108, Operating Segments The Company is engaged in the|

business maintainance of the malls and properties and all its other activities revolve around this business. The CODM reviewes the performance of the Company as one segmant
Accordingly, the Company has not identified any different segments, The Company has earned Rs 13947.83 Lakhs (Previous year Rs 1139175 Lakhs) from WTC operations , mll|

and commercial properties,

if) The Company operates only in India,hence no geographical segments has been disclosed

iii) The Company's revenue from Amazon Development Centre India Pvt Ltd, is Rs 1887 82 Lakh, more than 10% of entity's total revenue,




WTE Trades & Projects Private Limited
Mertes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
[All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwlse stated)

Note 33

Note 34

Note 35

Note 36

Note 37

Note 38

Earnings per share
Basic Earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year allributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of eyuity shares
outstanding during the year

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing Lhe profit atinbutable to equily holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted
average number of equily shares thal would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equily shares

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Year Ended March 31, 2024 Year Ended March 31, 2023

Rs. Rs.
Profil before Exceptional ilemns before tax 3,068 4,588
Tax before Exceptional Items 776 39
Profit after tax and before Exceptional ltems 2,292 4,192
Profit after tax 2,292
Weighted average number of equity shares for 60,05,000 60,05,000
Effect of dilution: Stock options granted under
Weighted average number of equily shares B, 0%, N0 ), 0%, 1is0
Basic & Diluted 3817 7083
Commitments and contingencies
a.Capltal commlitments
Nil
b. Contingent liabilities

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Rs. Rs.

Income tax outstanding demands on account of various disallowances for the various Assessment Years 513.51 201.05
513.51 201.05

The Company does not expect any outcome in respect of the above contingent liabilities and it is not practicable to estimate the timing of the cash outflows, if any, in respect of aforesaid
matters and it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the above obligations/claims. Company confirms that there is a strong grounds appeal filed and
based on its internal assessment the Company believes that there will be no devolvement of liability.

Due to micro, small and medium enterprises to the extent identlfied with the records of the Company based on Informatlon recelved

March 31, 2029 March 31,2023
Rs. Rs.
(i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of 10431 659.85
each accounting year
104,31 659.85

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises
Interest due on above

{iijThe amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the

amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appainted day during each accounting year.
{iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period ot delay in making payment {which have been

paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the

MSMED Act, 2006

(iv)interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment during the year,

(v} The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.

{vi)The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such

date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
i e as a deductibl di under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006,

The board of directors of the Company in its Board Meeting held on April 23. 2024 has proposed final dividend of @ Rs, 22,50 per share for the FY 2023-24 which is subject to the approval of the
members at the ensurlng annual general meeting to be conducted

The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed a merger of the Company with Tandem Allied Services Private Limited, its Holding Company. The Company has approved a draft Scheme of
Amalgamation ("the Scheme) on May 3, 2023. The same is filed with respective statutory authorities (National Company Law Tribunal {"the Tribunal"})) under section 230 to 232 of the Act

{1) Title deeds of Immovable propertles not held in the name of the Company:

The Company does not hold any immovable properties other than those held on the Company's name.

{il) Loans or Advances In the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and related parties:
The Company has not granted any loans or advances ta promoters, directors, KMPs and related parties

{ill) Detalls of Benami Property held:

The Company does not hold any benami property

{Iv) Details of brrowlngs from banks of financlal institutions on the basls of security of current assets:

The Company does not have any such loans.

If any to be ¥

{b) if not, summary of reconciliation and reasons of materlal discr
The Company does not have any discrepancies. 4
(v} Wilful Defaulter: !
The Company Is not a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender. i !
{vl) Relationship with Struck off Companles:

The Company has no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956,

{vil) Registratlon of charges or satlsfaction with i of C

No charges or satisfaction registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

{vlli) Compllance with number of layers of companies:

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017
(Ix) Compllance with approved Scheme(s) of Ar

The Company is not a part of any Scheme of Arr has been app! d by the C Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013

{x} Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

The Company does not posess any borrowed funds or share premium
{xi) Undisclosed Income:

The Company does not have any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered ar disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tay
Act, 1961

{xil} Corporate Social Responslbllity (CSR):

The Company covered under section 135 of the Companies act

{xill) Detalls of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency:

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currancy or Virtual Currency during the financlal year.

&y
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WTC Trades & Projects Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (or the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated}

| Note 39 Financial ratios

. Ratio Current Ratio
Numerator Current Assets
Denominator Current Liabilities

Ratios/ Measures As at Mar 31, 2024| As at Mar 31, 2023

Current Assets (A) 8,722 6,021
Current Liabilities (B} 5,612 4,775
Current Ratlo {C) =(A) / (B} 155 126

23.28%

2iChange from previous year

b, Ratio Debt service coverage ratio
Numerator Earnings available for debt service
Denominator Debt service
Ratlos/ Measures
As at Mar 31, 2024| As at Mar 31, 2023

Profit after tax for the year (A) 2,291.91 4,253.54
Add: Non cash operating expenses and finance cost

Depreciation and Amortisation expense {B) 200.07 22138

Finance costs (C) 51.54 90 64
Earnings avallable for debt services (D} = (A)+({B)}+{C) 2,543.53 4,565.55
Finance costs (E) 5154 90 64
|Repayment of non-current borrowings (F) o
Payment of principal portion of [ease liabilities {G) 87 87 9287
Debt service (H) = (E } + (F) + (G) 139.41 183.51
Debt service coverage ratio (1) = (D ) /{H) 18.24 24.88
%Change from prevlous year -26.67%

Deduction of interest cost

& Ratlo Return on equity [%]

Numerator Profit after tax
Denomlnator Average Shareholder’s Equity
Ratios/ Measures

A= atl Mar 31, 2024] As at Mar 31, 2023
Profit after tax for the year (A) 2,291.91 4,253 54
Closing shareholder's equity {B) 8,245 5,964
Average shareholder's equity [{opening + closing) /2] {C) 7,105 3,613
Return on equlty [%] (D) = (A)/{C) *100 0.32 1.18
Change from previous year 13%

The variance is due to dividend income received from subsidiary in FY 2022-23,

d. Ratio Inventory turnover ratio

Numerator Cost of goods sold
Denominator Average inventory
Ratios/ Measures

As at Mar 31, 2024| As at Mar 31, 2023
Cost of goods sold (A) 748.50 77140
Closing inventory {B) 385.71 298 38
Average inventory [(opening + closing) /2] (C ) 342.05 187.52
Inventory turnover ratto (D) = (A)/(C ) 2.19 4.11
HChange from previous year -A6.81%
Low inventory in FY 2021-22 lgads to average |owirt average inventory for FY 2022-23

" Ratio Trade receivables turnover ratio

Numerator Revenue from operations
Denominator Average trade receivables
Ratios/ Measures

A at Mar 31, 2024] As at Mar 31, 2023
Ruvenue [fom operations (A} 13,948 10,903
Clasing Trade Receivables 3,257 2,564
fwarage Trade Receivables [{opening + closing) /2] (B) 2,910 1,983
Trade receivables turnover ratlo (C) = (A / (8] 4.79 5.50
sChange from previous year -12.85%

Net accounting of reimbursements leads to lower revenue from operationwiiich Is the reason aof variance




WT{ Trades & Profects Privale Limitec
Notes to the {inancial statements for the year ended Ma-ch 31, 2024
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

t Ratio Net cap.lal luinover ratio
Numerator Revenue [iom operations

Denominator Working capital

Ratios/ Measures

Revenue from operations (A)
Working Capital {Current Assets - Cuirent Liabilities) {B)
Net capltal turnover ratio (C ) = (A)/ (B)

%Change from prevlous year

As at Mar 31, 2024| As at Mar 31, 2023
13,948 10,903
3,110 1,245
4.48 8.76
-48.78%

Better warking capital anel Met accounting of reimbursements leads to lower revenue from operation which are the oz

8 Ratio Net profit ratio [%]
Numerator Prolit after tax

Denominator Revenue from operations

ati of variance

Ratios/ Measures

Profit after tax for the year (A)
Revenue from operations (B)
Net profit [%] (C ) = (A} / (B) *100

HChange from previous year

As at Mar 31, 2024| As at Mar 31, 2023
2,291.91 4,25354
13,947.82 10,903 14
16%, 39.01%

57.R8%

h. Ratio Return on capital employed (%)
Numerator Earning before interest and taxes
Denominator

Capital Employed (Total equity, Total borrowings and Total lease liabilities)

|Ratios/ Measures
As at Mar 31, 2024 As at Mar 31, 2023

Profit after tax for the year (A} 2,29191 4,253.54
Adjustments

Add: Total tax expense {B) 77599 39601

Add: Finance costs (C) 51.54 90.64
Earnings before Interest and tax (D) = (A) + (B) + (C) 3,119.45 4,740,19
Total equity {E) 8,24541 5,964.49
Current and Non-current borrowing (F) -
Current and Non-current lease liability (G} 157.86 225.20
Capital Employed (H) = (E) + (F) + (G) 8,403.26 6,189.69
Return on capital employed [%] (1) = (D) / (H) *100 37% 77%
% ) previous year -51.53%
The variance is due to dividend income received from subsidiary in FY 2022-23
Ratio Return on investment [%]
Numerator Interest income on fixed deposits + Profit on sale of investments + Income’of investments - Impairment on value of invesme
Denominator Current investment + Non current investments + Fixed deposits with bank

Ratlos/ Measures

_|

Interest income on fixed deposits (A}

Income of investments (B)

Profit on sale of investments (C}

Impairment on value of invesment (D)

Net return on Investments (E ) = {A}+(B)+{C)+(D)
Current investment (F)

Non current investments (G}

Fixed deposits with bank (H)

Total Investment (1) = (F) + (G) + (H)

Return on Investment {%] () = (E) / {1) *100

%C_hang_e from Pre_vlgus vear

J Ratio Debt Equity Ratio
Numerator Total Debt [represents current and non-current borrowings)
Denominator Shareholders’ equity [represents total equity]

Ratios/ Measures

Total debt {A)
Shareholder's equity (B)
Debt equity ratlo (C) = (A) / (B)

%Change from previous vear

*During the year, company repzid 1he barrowings

3 Ratlo Trade payables turnover ratio
Numerator Total purchases
Denomlinator Average trade payables

Ratios/ Measures

Total purchases * (A)

Closing Trade Payables

Average Trade Payables [(opening + closing) /2] {B)
Trade payables turnover ratlo (C) = (A) / {B)

as at Mar 31, 2024 As at Mar 31, 2023
102 38
29 28
131 66
441
4,381 1,270
4,381 1,710
2.99% 3.89%
-23.07%
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 ~
- 1,700.00 P
8,24541 5,964 49
- 0.29 5
-100.00% S
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
835.83 990.31
4,707.32 3,565.51
6,490.08 4,561.51
0.13 0.22
-40.68%

%Change from previous year




